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Gardiner Thomsen 
Certified Public Accountants 

Independent Auditors' Report 

To the Officials of Franklin County 
Hampton, Iowa 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Franklin County, Iowa, as of and 
for the year ended June 30, 2010, which collectively comprise the County's basic financial 
statements listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of 
Franklin County's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial 
statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the 
standards applicable to fiancial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by 
the Comptroller General of the United States. Tlose standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe our audit provides a reasonable basis 
for our opinions. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of Franklin County at June 30, 2010, and the respective 
changes in financial position and cash flows where applicable, for the year then ended in 
conformity with U.S. generally accepted acconntingprinciples. 

In accordance with Goveri~rnent Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
January 24, 201 1, on our consideration of Franklin County's intemal control over financial 
reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations and 
contracts. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an 
opinion on the intemal control over fiiancial reporting or on compliance. That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and 
should be considered in assessing the results of our audit. 

1209 South Main Street, PO Box 216 'Charles City, IA 50616-0216 'Phone: (641) 2287096 'Fax: (641) 226-7103 'w.gardinercpa.com 



Management's Discussion and Analysis, Budgetary Coinparison Information and the Schedule of 
Funding Progress for the Retiree Health Plan on pages 4 - 10 and 40 - 43 are not required parts 
of the basic fina~lcial statements, but are supplementary information required by the 
Govennnental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which 
coilsisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the inethods of nleasurernent and 
presentation of the required supplementary information. We did not audit the information and 
express no opinion on it. 

Our audit was conducted for the puipose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise Franklin County's basic financial statements. We previously audited, in 
accordance with the standards referred to in the second paragraph of this report, the financial 
statements for the seven years ended June 30, 2009 (which are not presented herein) and 
expressed unqualified opiilioils on those financial statements. Other supplementary information 
included in Schedules 1 through 5, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a 
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is 
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial stateinents taken as a whole. 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Franklin County provides this Management's Discussion and Analysis of its financial statements. This 
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities is for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. 
We encourage readers to consider this information in conjunction with the County's financial 
statements, which follow. 

20 10 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGI-ITS 

+ Revenues of the County's governmental activities decreased by $846,561, or approximately 
6.08% from 2009 to 2010. Property taxes increased approximately $318,042, including 
debt service, and grants and contributions decreased by approximately $ 1 3  1,95 1 from 
2009 to 2010, largely due to a decrease in DOT contributed infrastructure received during 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. Charges for service increased by $182,550. 

+ Program expenses of the County's govern~neiltal activities were $1,601,842 or 
approximately 13.49% more in fiscal year 2010 than in fiscal year 2009. Roads and 
transportation expense increased approximately $869,255 and Interest and Fees on Long 
Term Debt increased approximately $485,479. 

+ The County's net assets decreased approxiinately $394,827 or 2.23%, fro111 June 30, 2009 to 
June 30,2010. 

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT 

The annual report consists o l a  series of financial statements and other information, as follows: 

Management's Discussion and Analysis introduces the basic financial statements and provides 
an analytical overview of the County's financial activities. 

The Government-wide Financial Statements consist of a Statement of Net Assets and a 
Statement of Activities. These provide information about the activities of Frauklin County as 
a whole and present an overall view of the County's finances. 

The Fund Fin'mcial Statements tell how governmental services were financed in the short tenn 
as well as what remains for future spending. Fund Financial Statements report Franklin 
County's operations in more detail than the gover~~n~ent-wide statements by providing 
illformation about the most significant funds. The remaining statements provide financial 
information about activities for which Franlclin County acts solely as an agent or custodian for 
the benefit of those outside of Couilty governments (Agency Funds). 

Notes to financial statements provide additional illformation essential to a full understallding 
of the data provided in the basic financial statements. 

Required Supplementary Info~mation further explains and supports the financial state~llents 
with a comparison of the County's budget for the year, as well as presenting the Schedule of 
Funding Progress for the Retiree I-Iealth Plan. 

Other Supplementary Information provides detailed illformation about the ilonmajor 
governmental and the individnal Agency Funds. 



REPORTING THE COUNTY'S FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

One of the most important questions asked about the County's finances is, "Is the County as a 
whole better off or worse off as a result of the year's activities?" The Statement of Net Assets 
and the Statement of Activities report information which helps answer this question. These 
statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting and the 
economic resources measurement focus, which is similar to the accounting used by most private- 
sector comnpanies. All of the current year's revenues and expenses are talcen into account, 
regardless of when cash is received or paid. 

The Statement of Net Assets presents all of the County's assets and liabilities, wit11 the 
difference between the two reported as "net assets". Over time, increases or decreases in the 
County's net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the finailcia1 position of the 
County is improving or deteriorating. 

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the Couilty's net assets changed 
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the change 
occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported 
in this statement for some items that will not result in cash flows until future fiscal periods. 

The County's governmental activities are presented in the Statement of Net Assets and the 
Statement of Activities. Governmeiltal activities include public safety and legal services, 
physical health and social services, mental health, county environment and education, roads and 
transportation, governmental services to residents, administration, interest on long-term debt 
and non-program activities. Property tax and state and federal grants finance most of these 
activities. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The County has three kinds of funds: 

1) Governmental funds account for most of the County's basic services. These focus on 
how money flows into and out of those funds, and the balances leA at year-end that are 
available for spending. The governmental fimds include: 1) the General Fund, 2) the 
Special Revenue Funds, such as Mental Health, Rural Services and Secondary Roads, 
3) the Debt Service Fund, and 4) the Capital Projects Fund. These funds are reported 
using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis 
of accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be 
converted to cash. The goverlrmeutal fund financial statements provide a detailed, 
short-tern1 view of the County's general governmental operations and the basic 
services it provides. Governlnental fund information helps determine whether there are 
more or fewer financial resources that call be spent in the near future to finance the 
County's programs. 

The required financial statements for governmental funds include a balance sheet and a 
statement of revennes, expenditures and changes in fund balances. 

2) Proprietary funds account for the County's Iuternal Service, Employee Group Health 
Fund. Intei~lal Service Funds are an accounting device used to accuinulate aild allocate 
costs illternally among the County's various functions. 



The required financial statements for proprietary funds include a statement of net assets, a 
statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net assets and a statement of cash flows. 

3) Fiduciary funds are used to report assets held in a trust or agency capacity for others 
which cannot be used to support the County's own programs. These fiduciary funds 
include Agency Funds that account for corporations, townships and the County 
Assessor, to name a few. 

The required financial statement for a fiduciary fund is a statenlent of fiduciary assets and 
liabilities. 

Reconciliation between the government-wide financial statements and the fund financial statements 
follows the fund financial statements. 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of financial position. Franl~lin 
County's combined net assets decreased by $394,827 from approxin~ately $17,676,893 to 
$17,282,066. The analysis that follows focuses on the net assets for govern~nental activities. 

Net Assets of Governmental Activities 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Net Assets: 
Current and Other Assets 
Capital Assets 

Total Assets 

Current Liabilities 
Long-Term Liabilities 

Total Liabilities $26,945 $8,631 

Net Assets 
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Assets $17,282 $17,677 

Net assets of Franklin County's governmental activities decreased by 2.23% ($17.282 million 
compared to $17.677 n~illion). One of the largest portion of the County's net assets is invested in 
capital assels (e.g., land, infrastructure, buildings and equipment), less the related debt. The debt 
related to the investnlent in capital assets is liquidated with sources other than capital assets. 
Unrestricted net assets are the part of net assets that can be used to Finance day-to-day operations 
without constraints established by debt covenants, enabling legislation, or other legal requirements. 



Changes in Net Assets of Goveri~mental Activities 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Revenues: 
Program Reveilues: 

Charges for Service 
Operating Grants, Contributions and Restricted Interest 
Capital Grants, Coiltributions and Restricted Ii~terest 

General Revenues: 
Property Tax - General Purpose 
Property Tax - Debt Service 
Penalty and Interest on Property Tax 
State Tax Credits 
Local Optioil Sales Tax 
Tax Iilcreineilt Financing 
Unrestricted Investment Earnings 
Other General Revenues 

Total Revenues 

Program Expenses: 
Public Safety and Legal Services 
Physical Ilealth and Social Services 
Mental Health 
County Enviroiunent and Educalioll 
Roads and Transportation 
Government Services to Residents 
Administration 
Non-Program 
lilterest on Long-Term Debt 

Total Expenses 

Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets 
Net Assets Beginning of Year 

Net Assets End of Year 

Year Ended June 30, 
2010 2009 

Goverllmental Activities 

Revenues for Fraificlin County's governmental activities decreased 6.08%, while total expenses 
increased 13.49%. The decrease in net assets in governmental activities totaled $394,827 in fiscal 
2010. 

Revenues for governmental activities were $13,080,568 while expenses amounted to $13,475,395. 



The cost of all govemnental activities this year was $13,475,395. The portion of the cost 
financed by users of the County's programs was $2,718,860. The federal and state governments 
and private contributors subsidized certain programs with grants and contributions totaliilg 
$4,078,146. The net cost portion of governme~ltal activities was financed with $5,301,507 in 
propelty tax and penalties, $228,188 in state tax credits, $460,365 in local option sales tax, and 
$117,053 in unrestricted interest income. 

INDIVIDUAL MAJOR FUND ANALYSIS 

As Franllklin County completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance 
of $23.640 million, a11 increase of $16,895,306 overall from last year's total of $6.7 million. The 
followiilg are the major reasons for the changes in fund balances of the major funds from the prior 
year: 

. General Fund revenues were down $257,010 from last year. Expeuditures decreased by 
$537,007 from last year. This decrease in revenue is priularily due to increased 
intergover~lmental revenues. The ending fund balances showed an increase of $512,620 from 
the prior year. 

The County has colltinued to look for ways to effectively manage the cost of ~neutal health 
services. For the year, expenditures totaled approxin~ately $1,026,945, a decrease of 5% from 
the prior year. The Mental Health Fund balance at year ended increased by approximately 
$24,352 from the prior year. 

. Secondary Roads Fund expenditures increased by approximately $809,958 from the prior 
year, due priucipally to road repair, equipment purchases and costs associated with a severe 
winter. This increase in expenditures, along with oilly an increase in revenues of $128,938, 
resulted in a decrease in the Secondary Roads Fund ending balance of approximately 
$237,132, or 19% over prior year. 

Rural Basic Fund balances illcreased by $88,134, mainly due to a decrease in expenditures from 
$693,116 in the prior year to $577,262 in the current year. 

The Whispering Willow East Fund was established during the curre~lt fiscal year to account for the 
tax increment financing associated with the Whispering Willow Wind Farm. 

The Special Projects Fund was utilized in the current year to fuud the Franklin County Law 
Elrforcelnent Center renovatiolrs. Expeudit~tres increased by $413,976 and resulted in a $427,118 
decrease in fiu~d balance to $614,740. 

Public Health Fund experienced increased reveilues of $6,585 aud increased expellditures of 
$25,742 to realize a $71,469 increase in ending Fund balance. 

The Homemakers Fuud bala~lce decreased slightly by $44,932 

Debt Service Fuud expenditures selvioed the debt for Fra~lllklin County's capital expenses incurred 
for the Clock Tower Project Bond. This bond was refunded during the current year resulting in 
$1,226,225 of expenditures and $895,000 of proceeds from debt issuance. Fund balance increased 
slightly by $15,200. 

The Capital Project Whispering Willow Fund was established during the current year to account 
for the road improveme~lt projects. Duriug the year, proceeds fro111 debt totaled $15,851,339 
while expenditures totaled $109,227 leaving an eudiilg fund balance of $15,742,112. 



BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

In accordance wit11 the State of Iowa, the County amlually adopts a budget followi~lg required 
public notice and hearing for all funds, except blended conlpollent units, intellla1 service funds, 
and agency funds. This is referred to as the certified budget. The certified budget may be 
amended during the year utilizing sinlilar statutorily prescribed procedures. The county's certified 
budget is prepared on the cash basis. 

Over the course of the year, Fra111din County amended its budget two times. These amendments 
resulted in an increase in budgeted revenue of $378,265, and an increase in budgeted expenditures 
of $2,685,542. Even with the budget amendments, the County exceeded the budgeted amount in 
the debt service function for the year euded June 30, 2010. 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

At the end of 2010, the C o u ~ ~ t y  had $20,515,288 invested in a broad range of capital assets, including 
public safety equipment, buildings, park facilities, roads and bridges. This arnouilt represents a net 
increase (including additions and deletions) of approximately $1,930,492, or 10% over last year. 
More detailed information about capital assets is available in Note 4 to the financial staten~ents. 

Capital Assets at Year End of Governmental Activities 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

June 30, 
2010 2009 

Land 
Buildings & Improve~nents 
Machinery & Equipme111 
Infrastructure 
Constructio~l in Process 

Totals 

This year's major additions included (in thousands): 
Secondary Road Equipment 
Sheriff Department Vehicles 
Park School Property 
Infrastruclure 

The County had depreciation expense of $1,032,677 for the year ended June 30, 2010 and total 
accumulated depreciation of $7,587,433. 

The County's Fiscal year 2010 capital budget included $1,861,498 for capital projects, including 
$1,616,498 for road construction and $215,000 for co~lservation laud acquisition. 

Long-Term Debt 

At June 30, 2010, Frankliu County had approximately $20,964,026 in notes and other debt (Landfill 
liability), conlpared to approximately $3,139,685 at June 30, 2009, as shown below. 



Outstanding Debt of Goveinmental Activities at Year-End 
(Exuressed in Thousands) 

General obligation Notes 
General obligation Bonds 
Capital Lease Purchase Agreement 
Drainage Warrants and Improvement Certificates 
Compensated Absences 
Net OPEB Liability 
Postclosure Estimate 

Totals $20,964 $3,139 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES 

Franklin County's elected and appointed officials and citizens considered many factors when setting 
the fiscal year 201 1 budget, tax rates, and the fees that will be charged for various County activities. 
One of those factors is the current economic picture for Franklin County and its residents. Rising 
costs of maintaining roads and infrastructure was a major issue and the development of the Whispering 
Willow Wind Farm made it possible for the County to utilize the tax increlneilt value of said wind farm 
to repair or rebuild infrastructure throughout the County. Dollars that have been saved and transfei~ed 
to a Special Project Fui~d the past four years will be utilized for the renovation of the Old Park School 
building to make into a law enforcement facility, with future growth within the building. The 
Conservation Rolling Prairie Trail Project is slowly developiilg which involves the IDNR, IDOT and 
the Vision Iowa Grants. Various expenses could be expended for the trail during this fiscal year 
depending on the timeliness of the Grant agencies. 

CONTACTING THE COUNTY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This fiilancial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and creditors with a 
general overview of Franklin County's finances and to show the County's accountability for the lnoiley 
it expends and receives. If you have questioils about this report or need additional finai~cial 
information, contact the Franklin County Auditor's Office, 12 1'' Ave NW, PO Box 26, Hampton, IA 
50441. 



FRANKLIN COUNTY 
IIampton, Iowa 

Exhibit A 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
June 30,2010 

Governmental 
Activities 

ASSETS 
Cash &Pooled Investments 
Receivables: 

Property Tax: 
Delinquent 
Succeeding Year 

Interest & Pe~lalty on Property Tax 
Accounts 
Accrued Interest 
Drainage Assess~nents 

Due From Other Gove~~lments 
Inventories 
Preoaid Insurance 
Capital Assets (Net of Accumulated Depreciation) 14,444,009 

TOTAL ASSETS 44,227,227 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts Payable 
Accrued Interest Payable 
Salaries & Benefits Payable 
Due To Other Govern~nents 
Deferred Revenue: 

Succeeding Year Property Tax 
Long-Term Liabilities: 

Portion Due Or Payable Within One Year: 
Capital Lease Purchase Agreements 
General Obligalion Bonds 
Compensated Absences 

Portion Due Or Payable Arter One Year: 
Capital Lease Purchase Agreements 
General Obligation Bonds 
Postclosure Care Costs 
Drainaee WarrantsIDrainaee Imurovement Certificates Pavable - 
Net O ~ E B  Liability 67,649 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 26,945,161 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 13,223,055 
Restricted For: 

Mental Health Purposes 303,989 
Secondary Roads Purposes 898,158 
Debt Service (1,246) 
Capital Projects 15,778,540 
Other Purposes 3,930,015 

Unrestricted (16,850,445) 

TOTAL NET ASSETS $17,282,066 

See Notes To Financial Statements 



Exhibit B 

FRANIUIN COUNTY 
Hampton, Iowa 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
Year Ended June 30. 2010 

Program Revel~ues 

Operating Grants, Capital Grants, Net (Expense) 
Contributions, Contributions Revenue 

Charges for & Restricled And Restricted & Chanees - - 
Expenses Service Interest Interest In Net Assets 

PUNCTIONSIPROGRAMS: 
Governnlental Activities: 

Public Safety and Legal Services $1,316,593 $107,262 $40,193 $0 $(1,169,138) 
Physical Health and Social Services 1,741,802 1,161,774 387,634 0 (192,394) 
Mental Health 1,041,809 220,589 426,823 0 (394,397) 
County Environment and Education 632,568 36,735 45,180 0 (550,653) 
Roads and Transportation 5,413,469 395,711 2,734,211 375,352 (1,908,195) 
Governmental Services to Residents 429,272 196,517 24,590 0 (208,165) 
Administration 1,587,489 54,303 25,774 0 (1,507,412) 
Non-Program 752,638 545,969 18,389 0 (188,280) 
Interest and Fees on Long-Term Debt 559,755 0 0 0 (559,755) 

TOTAL $13,475,395 $2,718,860 $3,702,794 $375,352 (6,678,389) 

GENERAL REVENUES: 
Property and Other County Tax Levied For: 

General Purposes 
Debt Service 

Penalty and Interest on Property Tax 
State Tax Credits 
Local Option Sales Tax 
Tax Incremenl Financing 
Unrestricted Investmellt Earnings 
Miscellaneous 

TOTALGENERALREVENUES 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 

NET ASSETS BEGINNING OP YEAR 

NET ASSETS END O F  YEAR 

See Notes To Financial Statements 



FRANKLIN COUNTY 
Hampton, Iowa 

BALANCE SHEET 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

June 30,2010 

Cash and Pooled Investments $2,361,470 $416,592 $549,884 $373,089 $1,630,086 
Receivables: 

Property Tax 
Delinquenl 6,149 696 2,390 0 0 
Succeeding Year 2,927,748 331,283 1,744,004, 0 0 

Interest & Penalty on Property Tax 94 0 0 0 0 
Accounts 26,213 5,121 100 3,387 0 
Accrued Interest 3 1,934 0 0 0 0 
Drainage Assessments 0 0 0 0 0 

Due From Other Governments 7,833 4,557 22,720 161,050 0 
Inventories 0 0 0 734,198 0 
Prepaid Insurance 69,591 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL ASSETS $5,431,032 $758,249 $2,319,098 $1,271,724 $1,630,086 

LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 
Accounts Payable $43,901 $33,114 $5,194 $199,484 $0 
Salaries &Benefits Payable 12,707 5,143 544 44,771 0 
Interest Payable 0 0 0 0 0 
Due To Other Governments 45,918 84,720 0 614 0 
Co~npensated Ahscnces 1,122 0 0 0 0 
Deferred Revenue: 

Succeeding Year Provertv Tax 2.927.748 331,283 1.744.004 0 0 - . . . . . . 
Other 8,492 686 2,3 8 1 0 0 

Total Liabilities 3,039,888 454,946 1,752,123 244,869 0 

Fund Balances 
Reserved Foc 

Inventories 0 0 0 734,198 0 
Debt Service 0 0 0 0 0 

Unreserved, Reported In: 
General Fund 2,391,144 0 0 0 0 
Special Revcnue Funds 0 303,303 566,975 292,657 1,630,086 
Capital Projects Fund 0 0 0 0 - 0 

Total Fund Balances 2,391,144 303,303 566,975 1,026,855 1,630,086 

TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND 
BALANCES $5,43 1,032 $758,249 $2,319,098 $1,271,724 $1,630,086 

S e e  Notes To Finailcia1 Statements 



Exhibit C 

Special Revenue Capital Projects 
Special Public Debt Whispering 
Projects Health Hoineinakers Service Willow Nonniajor Total 



Exhibit D 

FRANKLIN COUNTY 
Hampton, Iowa 

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

June 30. 2010 

Total Governmental Fund Balances - Page 13 & 14 (Exhibit C) 

Amourzts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net 
Assets are difSfrent because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current fillancia1 
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. The cost of the 
assets is $22,031,442 and the accumulated depreciation is $7,587,433. 

Other long-term assets are not available to pay current expenditures and, 
therefore, are deferred in the funds. 

The Internal Service Fund is used by management to charge the costs of 
the County's health insurance benefit plan to individual fui~ds. The assets 
and liabilities of the Internal Service Fund are included in govenlmental 
activities in the Statement of Net Assets. 

Long-tern1 liabilities, including capital lease purchase agreenlents 
payable, bonds payable, compensated absences payable, other post 
einployineilt benefits payable, accrued interest payable, postclosure costs 
payable and drainage warrants and iinprovelnent certificates payable are 
not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported 
in the funds. 

Net Assets of Governmental Activities - Page 11 (Exhibit A) 

See Notes To Financial Statements 



FRANKLIN COUNTY 
Hnmpton, Iowa 

REVENUES: 
Property and Other County Tax 
1,ocal Option Sales Tax 
Interest and Penalty on Property Tax 
lntergovernnlental 
Licenses and Pennits 
Charges for Service 
Use of Money and Property 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
Year Ended June 30. 201 0 

EXPENDITURES: 
Operating: 

Public Safety and Legal Services 
Physical Health and Social Services 
Mental Health 
County Environment and Education 
Roads and Transportation 
Govwnmcntal Services to Residents 
Administrative 
Non - program 

Debt Service 
Capital Projects 

Total Expenditures 

Special Revenue 
Mental Rural Secondary Whispering 

General Health Services Roads Willow East 

Excess (Deficiency) of Rcvennes 
Ovcr (Under) Expenditures 668,865 24,352 1,422,673 (1,802,000) (438,575) 

Othcr Financing Sources (Uses): 
Operating Transfers In 
Operating Transfers Out 
Capital Lease Purchase Agreement 
Gencral Oblivation Bonds Issncd 
Drainage ~ a ~ r a n t s / l i n ~ r o v e i n e n t  Certificates Issued 0 0 0 0 0 
Total Other Financing Sourccs (Uses) (156,245) 0 (1,334,539) 1,590,368 2,068,661 

Nct Change in Fund Balances 512,620 24,352 88,134 (211,632) 1,630,086 

Fund Balances Beginning of Year 1,878,524 278,951 478,841 1,263,987 0 

Dccrcasc in Reserve for Inventories 0 0 0 (25,500) 0 .- 

Fund Balances End o l  Year $2,391,144 $303,303 $566,975 $1,026,855 $1,630,086 

See Notcs to Financial Statements 



Exhibit E 

Special Revenue Capital Projects 
Special Public Debt Whispering 
Projects Health Home~nakers Service Willow Nonmajor Total 



PRANIUIN COUNTY 
Exhibit F 

Hampton, Iowa 

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
Year Ended June 30,2010 

Net Chauge in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Fuuds - 
Page 16 & 17 (Exhibit E) 

Amourzts reported for governmental actiliities in the Statement of 
Activities are dfferent because: 

Governinental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while governmental 
activities report depreciation expense to allocate those expenditures over the 
life of the assets. Capital outlay expenditures and contributed capital assets 
exceeded depreciatioll expense in the current year as follows: 

Expe~~ditures for capital assets $1,198,208 
Capital assets contributed by the Iowa Department of Transportation 375,352 
Depreciation expense (1,032,677) 540,883 

Because some revellues will not be collected for several months after the 
County's year end, they are not coilsidered available revenues and are deferred 
in the governmental funds as follows: 

Property tax 819 
Other 61,596 62,415 

Proceeds from issuing long-term liabilities provide current financial resources 
to governn~ental funds, but issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the 
Statement of Net Assets. Repaymelit  of long-term liabilities is an expenditure 
in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in 
the Statement of Net Assets. Current year issuances exceed repayments as 
follows: 

Issued (19,296,948) 
Repaid 1,553,398 (17,743,550) 

Some expenses reported in the Stateinent of Activities do not require the use 
of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures 
in governmental funds as follows: 

Compensated ahsci~ces (13,142) 
Other Posl Eniployrne~~t Benefits (67,649) 
Interest on Long-Term Debt (61,461) (142,252) 

Illventories in the governmental funds have beell recorded as expei~ditures 
when paid. However, the statement of activities will report these itelns as 
expenditures in the period that thc corresponding net asset is exhausted. 

The Interllal Service Fund is used by management to charge the costs of 
e~nployee health benefits to individual funds. The change in net assets of the 
Inter~lal Service Fund is reported with goverinnental activities. (7,629) 

Change in Net Assets of Governme~~tal  Activities - Page 12 (Exhibit B) $(394,827) 

See Notes to Financial Stateinents 



Exhibit G 

ASSETS 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts Payable 

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted 

FRANKLIN COUNTY 
Hampton, Iowa 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
PROPRIETARY FUND 

June 30.2010 

Internal Service 
Einployee 

Group I-Iealth 

See Notes To Financial Statements 



Exhibit H 

FRANKLIN COUNTY 
Hampton, Iowa 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 

PROPRIETARY FUND 
Year Ended June 30, 2010 

Internal Service 
Enlployee 

Group Health 
OPERATING REVENUES: 

Reimbursements Froin Operating F u ~ ~ d s  $998,757 
Reimbursements From Einployees 92,671 
Other Reimbursements 46,674 

Total Operating Revenues 1,138,102 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Medical Claims 
Insurance Premiums 
Adininistrative Fees 
Miscellaneous 

Total Operating Expenses 

Net Loss (7,629) 

Net Assets Beginning of Year 150,446 - 

Net Assets End of Year $142,8 17 

See Notes to Financial Statements 



Exhibit I 

FRANKLIN COUNTY 
Hampton, Iowa 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
PROPRIETARY FUND 

Year Ended June 30,2010 

Internal Service 
Enrployee 

Group Health 
CASH PLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Cash Received From Operating Fund Reimburseinents 
Cash Received From Employees and Others 
Cash Payments To Suppliers for Services 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 

Cash & Cash Equivalents Beginning of Year 

Cash & Cash Equivalents End of Year 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH 
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Operating Loss 

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to Net Cash 
Provided by Operating Activities: 

Decrease in Accounts Receivable 
Increase In Accounts Payable 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $84,473 

See Notes To Financial Statements 



FRANKLIN COUNTY 
Hampton, Iowa 

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
AGENCY FUNDS 

June 30,2010 

ASSETS 

Cash & Pooled Investments: 
County Treasurer 
Other County Officials 

Receivables: 
Property Tax: 

Delinquetrt 
Succeeding Year 

Accounts 
Accrued Interest 
Assessments 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts Payable 
Due To Other Governments 
Trusts Payable 
Compensated Absences 
TOTAL LIABILITIES 

NET ASSETS 

Exhibit J 

See Notes To Financial Statements 



FRANIUIN COUNTY 
Hampton, Iowa 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 1: S ~ ~ m m a r y  of Significant Accoulltine Policies 

Franklin Couilty is a political subdivision of the State of Iowa and operates under the Home Rule 
provisioi~s of the Constitution of Iowa. The County operates under the Board of Supervisors form of 
goveri~nlent. Elections are on a partisan basis. Other elected officials operate ii~depende~ltly with the 
Board of Supervisors. These ofCicials are the Auditor, Treasurer, Recorder, Sheriff, and Attorney. The 
County provides nunlerous services to citizens, including law enforcement, health and social services, 
parks and cultural activities, plaming and zoning, roadway construction and maintenance, and general 
administrative services. 

The County's financial statements are prepared in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. 

For financial reporting purposes, Franlclin County has included all funds, organizations, agencies, 
boards, commissions, and authorities. The Coui~ty has also considered all potential component units for 
which it is financially accountable, and other organizations for which the nature and significance of 
their relationship with the County are such that exclusio~l would cause the County's financial statements 
to be inisleading or incomplete. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has set forth criteria to 
be considered in determining financial accountability. These criteria include appointing a voting 
majority of an organization's governing body, and (1) the ability of the County to iiupose its will on that 
organization or (2) the potential for the orgailization to provide specific benefits to or impose specific 
financial burdens on the County. 

These financial statelnents present Franklin County (the primary government) and its coinponent units. 
The component units discussed below are included in the County's reporting entity because of the 
significance of their operational or financial relationships with the County. 

Blended Coinponent Units - The following component units are entities which are legally separate from 
the County, but are so intertwined with the County thal they are, in substance, the same as the County. 
They are reported as part of the County and blended into the appropriate funds. 

Two hundred seventy four drainage districts have been established pursuant to Chapter 468 of the Code 
of Iowa for tbe drainage of surface waters from agricultural and other lands or the prolectioll of such 
lands froin overflow. Although these districts are legally separate from the County, they are controlled, 
managed and supervised by the Franklin County Board of Supervisors. The drainage districts are 
reported as a Special Revenue Fund. Financial information of the individual drainage districts can be 
obtained from the Franllklin County Auditor's office. 

Jointly Governed Organizations - The County also participates in several jointly governed 
organizations that provide goods or services to the citizei~ry of the County but do not meet the criteria 
of a joint venture since there is no ongoing financial interest or responsibility by the participating 
governments. The Fra~llclin County Board of Supervisors are members of or appoint representatives to 
the following boards and coinmissions: Franklin County Assessor's Conference Board, and Franlclin 
County Joint E911 Service Board. Financial transactions of lhese organizations are included in the 
County's financial statements only to the extent of the County's fiduciary relationship with the 
organization and, as such, are reported in the Agency F~nlds of the County. 



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

Government-wide Financial Statements - The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities 
report infol~nation on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the County and its component units. For the 
most part, the effect of it~terfu~ld activity has been reinoved froin these statements. Governmental 
activities are supported by property tax, intergover~ullental revenues and other nonexchange 
transactions. 

The Statement of Net Assets presents the County's nonfiduciary assets and liabilities, with the 
difference reported as net assets. Net assets are reported in the following categories. 

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accun~ulated 
depreciation and reduced by outstanding balances for bonds, notes, and other debt attributable to the 
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 

Restricted net assets result when collstraints placed on net asset use are either externally imposed or 
imposed by law through constitutional provisioils or enabling legislation. 

Unrestricted net assets consist of net assets that do not meet the definition of the two preceding 
categories. Unrestricted net assets often have constraints on resources that are imposed by 
management which can be removed or modified. 

The Statement of Activities deinonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function are 
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific 
function. Program revenues include 1) charges to custonlers or applicants who purchase, use, or 
directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given function and 2) grants, 
contributions and interest restricted to meeting the operational or capital requireiilents of a particular 
function. Property tax and other items not properly ii~cluded among program revenues are reported 
instead as general revenues. 

Fund Fi~lancial Statements - Separate financial statelnents are provided for governmental funds, 
proprietaty funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the govermnent-wide 
financial statements. Major i~ldividual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund 
financial statements. All remaining govern~neiltal funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor 
governmental funds. 

The County reports the followi~lg major governmental funds: 

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the County. All general tax revenues and other 
revenues not allocated by law or contractual agreement to some other fund are accounted for in Lhis 
fund. From ihe fund are paid the general operating expenditures, ihe fixed charges and the capital 
improvement costs that are not paid from other funds. 



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accou~ l t i~~g  Policies (Continued) 

B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (CONT~UED) 

Special Revenue 

The Mental Health Fund is used to account for property tax and other revenues designated to be 
used to fund mental health, mental retardation, aild developmental disabilities services. 

The Rural Services Fund is used to account for property tax and other revenues to provide services 
which are priinarily intended to benefit those persons residing in the county outside of 
incorporated city areas. 

The Secondary Roads Fund is used to account for the secondary road construction and 
maintenance. 

The Whispering Willow East Fund is used to account for the tax increment financing of the 
Whispering Willow Wind Farm projects. 

The Special Projects Fund is used to account for revenues and transfers from other governmental 
funds to finance special projects. 

The Public Health Fund is used to account for revenues and expenditures related to providing 
public health services. 

The Homemaker Fund is used to account for revenues and expenditures related to providing home 
health services. 

The Debt Service Fuud is utilized to account for the payment of interest and principal on the County's 
general long-term debt. 

The Capital Projects Whispering Willow Fund is used to accoullt for the road improvement projects in 
the TIF area. 

Additionally the County reports the followi~lg funds: 

Proprietary Fund - An Internal Service Fund is utilized to account for the financing of goods or 
services purchased by one deparlment of the county and provided to other departments or agencies 
on a cost reimbursen~ent basis. 

Fiduciary Funds A g e n c y  funds are used to account for assets held by the county as an agent for 
individuals, private orgai~izatio~ls, certain jointly governed orgai~izations, other governmental 
units, andlor other fi~nds. 

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

The government-wide, proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the 
economic resources nleasurenlent focus and the acc~ual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded 
when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related 
cash flows. Property tax is recognized as revenue in the year for which it is levied. Grants and similar 
items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have 
been satisfied. 



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accou~lting Policies (Continued) 

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED) 

Govermnental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as sooil as they are both 
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the 
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the curreilt period. For this purpose, the 
County considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days after year end. 

Property tax, intergovernineiltal revenues (shared revenues, grants and reinlbursements from other 
governments) a i~d  interest are considered to be susceptible to accrual. All other revenue items are 
considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the County. 

Expenditures generally are recorded wheu a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, 
principal and interest on long term debt, claims, judginents and compensated absences are recorded as 
expenditures only when payment is due. Capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are 
reported as other financing sources. 

Under the terins of grant agreements, the County funds certain programs by a combinatioll of specific 
cost-reiinbursement grants, categorical block grants and general revenues. Thus, wheu program 
expenses are incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net assets available to finance the 
program. It is the County's policy to first apply the cost-reimbursement grant resources to such 
programs, followed by categorical bloclc grants, and then by geileral revenues. 

The proprietary fund of the County applies all applicable GASB pronouncei~~e~lts as well as the 
following pronounceinents issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless these pronounceineilts 
conflict or contradict GASB pronouncements: Financial Accounting Standards Board Statements and 
Interpretations, Accouilting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins of the 
Committee on Accountiilg Procedure. 

l'roprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result froin providing services and producing and delivering goods in 
coilnection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of 
the County's Internal Service Fund are charges to cnstomers for sales and services. Operating expenses 
for Internal Service Fuiids include the cost of services and administrative expenses. All revenues and 
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 

The County maintains its financial records on the cash basis. The financial statements of the County are 
prepared by making meinorandum adjusting entries to the cash basis financial records. 

'The followiilg accounting policies are followed in preparing the financial statements: 

Cash. Pooled Investnlenls and Cash Equivalents - The cash balances of mosl Coui~ty funds are pooled 
and invested. Interest earned on iilvestlnents is recorded in the General Fund, unless otherwise 
provided by law. Investmenls are stated at fair value except Eor the investment in the towa Public 
Agency Iilveslmeilt Trust which is valued at amortized cost and non-negotiable certificates of deposit 
which arc stated a1 cost. 

For pui-poses of the statemenl of cash flows, all short-term cash investments that are highly liquid are 
coilsidered to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalellts are readily convertible to lulown amounts of cash 
and, at the day of purchase, have a maturity date no longer than three months. 



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accouuting Policies (Continued) 

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY (CONTINUED) 

Pro~er tv  Tax Receivable - Property tax in gove~lnnental funds is accounted for using the modified 
accrual basis of accounting. 

Property tax receivable is recognized in these funds on the levy or lien date, which is the date that the 
tax asking is certified by the County Board of Supervisors. Delinquent property tax receivable 
represents unpaid taxes for the current and prior years. The succeeding year property tax receivable 
represents taxes certified by the Board of Supervisors to be collected in the next fiscal year for the 
purposes set out in the budget for the next fiscal year. By statute, the Board of Supervisors is required 
to certify its budget in March of each year for the subsequent fiscal year. However, by statute, the tax 
asking and budget certification for the following fiscal year becomes effective on the first day of that 
year. Although the succeeding year property tax receivable has been recorded, the related revenue is 
deferred in both the government-wide and fund finallcia1 statements and will not be recognized as 
revenue until the year for which it is levied. 

Property tax revenue recognized in these fuilds becomes due and collectible in September and March of 
the Fiscal year with a 1%% per month penalty for delinquent payments; is based on January 1, 2008 
assessed property valuatioiis; is for the tax accrual period July 1, 2009 through June 30, 2010 and 
reflects the tax asking contained in the budget certified by the Couilty Board of Supervisors in March, 
2009. 

Interest and Penalty on Property Tax Receivable - Interest and penalty on property tax receivable 
represeilts the amount of interest and penalty that was due and payable, but has not been collected. 

Drainage Assessmeilts Receivable - Drainage assessineilt receivable represeilt ainounts assessed to 
individuals for worls done on drainage districts which bellefit their property. These assessments are 
payable by individuals in not less than 10 nor more than 20 annual installments. Each a~nlual 
installment with interest on the unpaid balance is due on September 30 and is subject to the same 
interest and penalties as other taxes. Delinquent drainage assessments receivable represent assessments 
which are due and payable but have not been collected. Succeeding year drainage assessments 
receivable represents remaining assessnlents which are payable but ilot yet due. 

Due froin and Due to Other Funds - Duriilg the course of its operations, the Couiity has nutilerous 
transactions between funds. To the extent certain transactions between funds had not be'en paid or 
received as of June 30, 2010, balances of interfund amouuts receivable or payable have been recorded 
in the fund financial statements. 

Due from Other Governments - Due from other governments represeilts ainounts due from the State of 
Iowa, various shared revenues, grants, and reiinburseinents from other goverimeuts. 

Inventories - Inveiltories are valued at cost using the first-in, first-out method. Inventories in the 
Special Revenue Funds consist of expeildable supplies held for consuinption. The cost is recorded as an 
expenditure at the time individual inventory items are purchased. Reported inventories are equally 
offset by a fund balance reserve which indicates that they are not available to liquidate current obli- 
gations. 



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

D. , ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY (CONTINUED) 

Capital Assets - Capital assets, which include property, equipment and vehicles, and infrastructure 
assets acquired after July 1, 2003 (e.g., roads, bridges, curbs, gutters, sidewalks and similar iteins which 
are i~n~novable and of value only to the government), are reported in the governlnental activities coluinn 
in the government-wide Statement of Net Assets. Capital assets are recorded at historical cost if 
purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the dale 
of donation. The costs of normal mai~~tenance and repairs that do ilot add to the value of the asset or 
materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. Reportable capital assets are defined by the County as 
assets with initial, i~ldividual costs in excess of the following thresholds and estimated useful lives ill 
excess of two years. 

Asset Class &&gg 
Infrastntcture $50,000 
Land, Buildings and Improvements 25,000 
Equipment and Vehicles 5,000 

Capital assets of the County are depreciated using the straight liue method over the following estimated 
useful lives: 

Estimated 
Useful Lives 

Asset Class (In Years) 
Buildings 40-65 
Building Inlprovenle~lts 20-50 
Infrastructure 10-65 
Equipment 2-20 
Vehicles 3-10 

Due to Other Gover~nnents - Due to other govemunents represents taxes and other revenues collected by 
the County and payments for services which will be remitted to other governments. 

Trusts Payable - Trusts payable represents amounts due to others which are held by various Couuty 
officials in fiduciary capacities until the underlying legal matters are resolved. 

Deferred Revenue - Although certain revenues are measurable, they are not available. Available means 
collected within the current period or expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay 
liabilities of the current period. Deferred revenue in the governmental fund financial statemeilts 
represents the amount of assets that have been recognized, but the related revenue has not been 
recognized since the assets are not collected within the current period or expected to he collected so011 
enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Deferred revenue consists of 
unspent grant proceeds as well as property tax receivables and other receivables not collected within 
sixty days after year-end. 

Deferred reveilue on the Statement of Net Assets consists of succeeding year property tax receivable 
thal will not be recognized as revenue until the year for which it is levied and unspent grant proceeds. 



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY (CONTINUED) 

Compeilsated Absences - County employees accumulate a limited amount of earned but unused 
vacation and sick leave hours for subsequent use or for payment upon termination, death or retirement. 
A liability is recorded when incurred in the government wide, proprietary and fiduciary fund financial 
statements. A liability for these anlou~lts is reported in governmental fund financial statemeilts only for 
er~lployees that have resigned or retired. The co~npensated absences liability has been computed based 
on rates of pay in effect at June 30, 2010. The compeilsated absence liability attributable to the 
governmeutal activities will be paid primarily by the General, Mental Health, Rural Services and 
Secondary Roads Funds. 

Long-term Liabilities - In the govenlment-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, long tern1 
debt and other long term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable goverilmental activities 
or proprietary fund Statement of Net Assets. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and 
amortized over the term of the related debt. 

In (he governinental fund financial statements, the face a~nount of debt issued is reported as other 
financing sources. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are 
reported as debt service expenditures. 

Fund Esuity - In the governmental fund financial statements, reservations of fund balance are reported 
for amouilts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use 
for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are 
subject to change. 

Net Assets - The nest assets of the Internal Service, Employee Group I-Iealth Fund is designated for 
anticipated f~iture catastrophic losses of the County. 

E. BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING 

The budgetary comparison and related disclosures are reported as Required Supplen~enlary Infonnation. 
During the year eilded June 30, 2010, disburseinents exceeded the amounts budgeted in the Debt 
Service function. 

Note 2: Cash and Pooled Investn~ents 

The County's deposits in badcs at June 30, 2010 were entirely covered by federal depository insurai~ce 
or by the State Sinlcing Fund in accordance with Chapter 12C of the Code of Iowa. This chapter 
provides for additional assessments against the depositories to insure there will be no loss of public 
f1111ds. 

The County is authorized by statute to invest public funds in obligations of the United States 
governinent, its agencies and instrumentalities; certificates of deposit or other evidences of deposit at 
federally insured depository i~lstitutioils approved by the Board of Supervisors; priine eligible bankers 
acceptances; certain high rated commercial paper; perfected repurchase agreements; certain registered 
open-end management investment companies; certain joint investinent trusts; and warrants or 
improvement certificates of a drainage district. 

The Coui~ty had illvestments in the Iowa Public Agency Illvestment Trust which are valued at amortized 
cost of$120,443, pursuant to Rule 2a-7 under the Investmeilt Coinpaily Act of 1940. 

At June 30, 2010, the County had the followiilg investinent: 

Type Fair Value Maturity 
US Governillent Treasury Bill $12,495,458 August 27,2010 



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

Note 2: Cash n ~ ~ d  Pooled Investments (Continued) 

Interest rate risk. The County's investment policy limits the investment of operating funds (funds 
expected to be expended in the current budget year or within 15 inoilths of receipt) in instruments that 
mature within 397 days. Funds not identified as operating funds inay be invested in investments wit11 
maturities longer than 397 days but the maturities shall be consistent with the needs and use of the 
County. 

Credit risk. The investment in Iowa Public Agency Investment Trust is unrated 

Concentration of credit risk. The County places no limit on the amount that may be invested in any one 
issuer. The U.S. Governmei~t Treasury Bills are excluded, given tho direct guarantee of the government. 

Note 3: Inter-fund Transfers 

The detail of inter-fund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2010 is as follows: 

Transfer To Transfer Froin Amount 
Special Revenue: Special Revenue: 

Secondary Roads Rural Services $1,334,539 
Secondaiy Roads General Fund 100,729 
Homemakers General Fund 40,516 

Debt Service: 
Dows Travel Center General Fund 10,000 
Whispering Willow East General Fund 5,000 

$1,490,784 

Transfers generally move resources from the fund statutorily required to collect the resources to the fund 
statutorily required to expend the resources. 

Note 4: Cn~itnl  Assets 

Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2010 was as follows: 

Balance Balance 
Beginning End 

of Year Increases Decreases of Year 
Gover~lmeiltal Activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land $1.074.647 $0 $0 $1.074.647 . . , . 
Conslructio~l in progress 218,122 405,155 239,991 383,286 

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 1,292,769 405,155 239,991 1,457,933 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Buildings 1,947,932 178,915 0 2,126,847 
Improvements other than buildings 1,865,529 0 0 1,865,529 
Machinery and equipment 6,407,169 524,296 57,406 6,874,059 
Infrastructure 9,001,889 705,185 0 9,707,074 

Total capital assets, being depreciated 19,222,519 1,408,396 57,406 20,573,509 



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

Note 4: Capital Assets (Continued) 

Balance Balance 
Begi~lning End 

of Year Illcreases Decreases of Year 
Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Buildings $545,931 $39,905 $0 $585,836 
In~provements other than buildi~lgs 81,198 38,134 0 119,332 
Machinery and equipment 4,091,959 436,302 57,406 4,470,855 
Infrastructure 1,893,074 518,336 0 2,411,410 

Total accumulated depreciatio~~ 6,612,162 1,032,677 57,406 7,587,433 

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 12,610,357 375,719 0 12,986,076 

Governmental activities capital assets, net $13,903,126 $780,874 $239,991 $14,444,009 

Depreciation expense was charged to the following functions: 

Public Safety a11d Legal Services 
Physical Health and Social Services 
Mental Health 
County Environment and Education 
Roads and 'Transportation 
Governmental Services to Residents 
Adn~i~listratioll 

Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities 

Note 5: Due to Other Governmellts 

The County purcbases services from other governmental units and also acts as a fee and tax collection 
agent for various governmental units. Tax collections are remitted to those governments in the  non nth 
following collection. A summary ofanlounts due to other governments is as follows: 

Fund Description An~ount 
General Services $45,918 

Special Revenue: 
Mental Health 
Secondary Roads 

Total for gover~mental funds 

Agency: 
Agricullural Extension 
Assessor 
Schools 
Co~ninunity Colleges 
Corporations 
Auto License & Use Tax 
All Others 

Total for agency funds 

Services 
Services 

Collections 



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

Note 6: Cl~anees in Long-Term Liabilities 

A summaly of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30,2010, is as follows: 

Estimated 
Liability for 

General Gei~eral Landfill 
Obligation Obligation Postclosnre Capital Lease Drainage 

Notes Bonds Care Costs Purchase Warrants 
Balance 
Beginning of Year $515,418 $1,320,000 $887,537 $0 $174,646 

Increases 0 18,810,000 0 155,100 311,263 

Decreases 41,459 1,160,000 11,714 43,000 294,505 

$473,959 $18,970,000 $875,823 Balance End of Year - $112,100 $191,404 

Due Within One 
Year $60,033 $305,000 $0 $37,101 $0 

Balance 
Begiiuling of Year 

Increases 

Drainage 
I~nprovernent Compensated 
Certificates Absences Total 

Decreases 2,721 0 1,553,399 

Balance End of Year $30,073 $243,018 $20,896,377 

Due Within Oiie 
Year 

Notes Payable 

A suumary of the County's June 30, 2010 general obligations note indebtedness is as follows: 

Year Ending Juue 30, Interest Kate Principal Interest Total 
2011 5.95% $44,033 $10,957 $54,990 



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

Note 6: Changes in Long-Term Liabilities (Continued) 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, Franklin County issued $280,000 of General Obligation 
Urban Renewable Economic Development Notes to fund an economic development grant in connectio~l 
with the Dows Travel Center Project. 

A summary of the Cou~~ty 's  June 30,2010 general obligation note indebtedness is as follows: 

Year Ending June 30, Interest Rate Principal Interest Total 
2011 2.35% $16.000 $11.404 $27.404 

Bonds Payable 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, Frankliiklin County issued $1,865,000 of General Obligation 
County Purpose Bonds to finance the restoratioll of the Courthouse Clock Tower, Courthouse 
Remodeling, and other capital expenditures. The Bonds were refunded in fiscal 2010 by the issuance of 
$895,000 General Obligation Rerunding Bonds. The County saved approximately $36,000 by refunding 
the County Purpose Bonds. 

A summary of the County's June 30, 2010 general obligation bond indebtedness is as follows: 

Year Ending June 30, Interest Rate Principle Interest Total 
2011 0.08% $145,000 $17,703 $162,703 
2012 1.10% 145,000 13,457 158,457 
2013 1.40% 145,000 11,862 156,862 
2014 1.75% 150,000 9,833 159,833 
2015 2.15% 155,000 7,208 162,208 
2016 2.50% 155,000 3,875 158,875 

During the year ended June 30, 2008, Franklin Counly issued $465,000 of General Obligation Highway 
Inlproveme~lt Bonds to finance the constructioll of highway, bridge and culvert i~nprovements in 
connection with an economic development project consisti~lg of the develop~ne~lt of wind generation 
facilities in the County. 

A sunlnlary of the County's June 30, 2010 general obligation bond indebtedness is as follows: 

Year Ending June 30, Interest Rate Principle Interest Total 

During the year ended June 30, 2010, Franklin County issued $17,915,000 of General Obligation Urban 
Renewal Road Improvement Bonds lo finance, along with other available funds, the costs of various 
2010 County Road projects. The Bonds are billding general obligations of the Cou~~ty,  and are payable 
from general ad valorem taxes, as well as tax increment fi~lancing revenues from the Urban Renewal 
Area. 

33 



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

Note 6: Changes in Long-Term Liabilities (Continued) 

A summary of the County's June 30, 2010 general obligation bond indebtedness is as follows: 

Year Ending June 30, Interest Rate Principle lilterest Total 
2011 2.15% $0 $680,480 $680.480 

Capital Lease Purchase Agreement 

011 December 30, 2009, the Secondary Road Department entered into a Capital Lease Agreemeut for the 
purchase of a Cat Wheel Loader. The agreement was for $155,100 with a $43,000 down payment of the 
day of the agreement. Payn~eilts are due anilually on August 1, for t hee  years, comnlenciilg August 1, 
2010. 

The following is a schedule of the future minimum lease payments, including interest at a rate of 4.4%, 
and the present value of net minimu111 lease payments under the agreemeill in effect at June 30, 2010. 

Year Ellding June 30, 
2011 
2012 
2013 

Total Miniinurn Lease Payments 
Less Amount Representing lilterest 7,877 

Preseill Value of Net Minimum Lease Payments $112,100 

Landfill - Postclosure Care Costs 

State and Federal Laws and regulatioils require the County to place a final cover on its landfill site when 
it stops acceptiug waste and to perforin certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for thirty 
years after closure. The County stopped accepting waste at the landfill on June 20, 1994. The County 
closed the landfill during the year ended June 30, 1995, incurring a total cost of $100,118, The County 
has also incurred $153,178 for the years ended June 30, 1996 through 2010, in costs for postclosure 
expenditures. The $875,822 reported as estimated liability for landfill postclosure costs at June 30, 
2010, represents the cumulative amount reported to date based on the use of 100 percent of the estimated 
capacity of the landfill. These ainow~ts are based on what it would cost to perform all postclosure care 
during the year ended June 30, 2010. Actual costs may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, 
or changes in regulations. 



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

Note 6: Chalices in Lone-Term Liabilities (Continued) 

Drainare WarrantsDrainage In~~rovement Certificates 

Drainage warrants are warrants which are legally drawn on drainage district funds but are not paid for 
lack of funds, in accordance with Chapter 74 of the Code of Iowa. The warrants bear interest at rates in 
effect at the time the warrants are first presented. Warrants will be paid as funds are available. 

Drainage improvement certificates payable represent amounts due to purchasers of drainage 
improvelnent certificates. Drainage inlprovement certificates are waivers that provide for a landowner to 
pay an improvement assessinent in installme~lt payments over a designated nui~lber of years with interest 
at a designated interest rate. The inlproveme~lt certificates representing thosc asscssnlents or 
installinents due from the landowner are sold for cash as interest bearing certificates. Funds received 
from the sale of certificates are used to pay outstanding registered warrants issued to contractors who 
perform work on drainage district iinprovenlents and registered warrants issued for other related costs. 
Drainage improven~e~lt certificates are redeemed and interest paid to the bearer of the certificate up011 
receipt of the iilstall~nent payment plus interest from the landowner. 

Drainage warrants and drainage inlprovement certificates are paid from the Special Revenue Fund solely 
from special assessments against benefited properties. 

Note 7: Pelision and Retirement Benefits 

The County contributes to the Iowa Public Elnployees Retirement Systein (IPERS) which is a cost- 
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of Iowa. IPERS 
provides retirement and death benefits which are established by State statute to plan members and 
beneficiaries. IPERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary information. The report inay be obtained by writing to IPERS, P.O. Box 9117, 
Des Moines, Iowa 50306-91 17. 

Most regular plan members are required to contribute 4.30% of their annual covered salary and the 
County is required to contribute 6.65% 01 covered salary. Certain employees in special risk occupations 
and the County contribute an actuarially deter~nined contributioil rate. Contribution requireinenls are 
established by State statute. The County's contribution to IPERS for the years ended June 30, 2010, 
2009, and 2008 were $260,223, $241,394 and $240,655, equal to the required contributions for each 
year. 

Note 8: Risk Management 

Franklin County is a member in the Iowa Communities Assurance Pool, as allowed by Chapter 331.301 
of the Code of Iowa. The Iowa Co~n~nunit~es Assurance Pool (Pool) is a local governlnent risk-sharing 
pool whose 634 members include various governcnental entities througho~rt the State of Iowa. The Pool 
was formed in August 1986 for the purpose of managing and funding third-party liability claims against 
its inemnbers. The Pool provides coverage and protection in the following categories: general liability, 
automobile liability, autocnobile physical damage, public officials liability, police professional liability, 
properly, inland marine and boilerliuachinery. There have been no reduclioiis in insurance coverage 
from prior years. 

Each member's annual casualty contributions to the Pool fund current operations and provide capital. 
Annual operating contributions are those iunounts necessary to fund, on a cash basis, the pool's general 
and administrative expenses, claims, claims expenses, and reinsurance expenses due and payable in the 
current year, plus all or any portion of any deficiency in capital. Capital contributions are made during 
the first six years of menlbership and are maintained to equal 200 percent of the total current members' 
basis rates or to co~nply with the requirements of any applicable regulatory authority having jurisdiction 
over the Pool. 



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

Note 8: RiskMallaeement (Continued) 

The Pool also provides property coverage. Members who elect such coverage make annual operating 
contributions which are necessary to fund, on a cash basis, the Pool's general and administrative 
expenses and reinsurance premiums, all of which are due and payable in the current year, plus all or any 
portion of any deficiency in capital. Any year-end operating surplus is transferred to capital. 
Deficiencies in operations are offset by transfers from capital and, if sufficient, by the subsequent year's 
member contributions. 

The County's property and casualty contribution to the risk pool are recorded as expenditures from its 
operating funds at the time of payrnent to the risk pool. The County's annual contributions to the Pool 
for the year ended June 30, 2010 were $180,618. 

The Pool uses reinsurance and excess risk sharing agreements to reduce its exposure to large losses. The 
Pool retains general, auton~obile, police professional, and public officials liability risks up to $350,000 
per claim. Claims exceeding $350,000 are reinsured in an ainount not to exceed $2,650,000 per claim 
and $10,000,000 in aggregate per year. For members requiring specific coverage from $3,000,000 to 
$10,000,000, such excess coverage is also reinsured. Property and automobile physical damage risks are 
retained by the Pool up to $150,000 each occurrence, each location, with excess coverage reinsured by 
the Travelers Insurance Conlpany. 

The Pool's intergovennnental contract with its inembers provides that in the event a casualty claim or 
series of claims exceeds the ainount of risk sharing protection provided by the menlber's risk sharing 
certificate, or in the event that a series of casualty claims exhausts total members' equity plus any 
reinsurance and any excess risk sharing recoveries, then payment of such claims shall be the obligation 
of the respective individual member. The County does not report a liability for losses in excess of 
reinsurance or excess risk sharing recoveries unless it is deemed probable that such losses have occurred 
and the amount of such loss can be reasonably estimated. Accordingly, at June 30, 2010, no liability has 
been recorded in the County's financial statements. As of June 30, 2010, settled claims have not 
exceeded the risk pool or reiilsurance company coverage since the pool's inception. 

Members agree to continue membership in the Pool for a period of not less than one Full year. After such 
period, a member who has given 60 days prior written notice may withdraw from the Pool. Upon 
withdrawal, payments for all casually claims and claims expenses become the sole responsibility of the 
withdrawing member, regardless of whether a claim was incurred or reported prior to the meinber's 
withdrawal. Members withdrawing within the first six years of membership may receive a partial refund 
of their casualty capital contributions. If a menlber withdraws after the sixth year, the member is 
refunded 100 percent of its casualty capital contributions. However, the refund is reduced by an amount 
equal to the annual casualty operating contribution, which the withdrawing inenlber would have made for 
the one-year period following withdrawal. 

The County also carries coin~nercial insurance purchased froin other insurers for coverage associated 
with workers compensation and employee blanket bond in the amount of $500,000 and $50,000, 
respectively. The County assumes liability for any deductible5 and claiins in excess of coverage 
limitations. Settled claiins resulting from these risks have not exceeded con~mercial insurance coverage 
in any ofthe past three fiscal years. 
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Note 9: Em~Iovee  Health Insurance Plan 

The Franldin County Employees Group Health Fund was established to account for the County's health 
insurance benefit plan. The plan is funded by both employee and County contributions and was 
adininistered through a service agreement with Wellmark. The agreement is subject to autoinatic 
renewal provisions. The County assumes liabilily for claims up to the individual stop loss limitations of 
$35,000. Claims in excess of coverage are insured through purchase of stop loss insurance. 

Monthly payluents of service fees and plan contributioi~s to the F~ranklin County Employee Group 
Health Fund are recorded as expenditures from the operating funds. Under the adininistrative service 
agreement, monthly payinents of premiuins and service fees are paid to Wellmark froin the Franldin 
County Employee Group Health Fund. The County records the plan assets and related liabilities of the 
Frauklin County Employee Group Health Fund as an Internal Service Fund. The County's contribution 
to the fund for the year ended June 30,2010 was $998,757. 

Note 10: Other Postemplovnterrt Benefits IOPEBL 

Franklin County impleinented GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Revortine by 
Emvlovers for Posten~vlov~nent Benefits Other Than Pensions during the year ended June 30, 2010. 

Plan Description. The County operates a single-enlployer retiree benefit plan which provides 
n~edicaliprescription drug benefits for retirees and their spouses. There are 91 active and 6 retired 
members in the plan. Enlployees inust be age 55 or older at relireinent. 

The nledicaliprescription dmg beuefit, which is a premium based medical plan, is adininistered by 
Wellmarlc. Retirees under age 65 pay the same preiniuin for the n~edicallprescriptioi~ drug benefit as 
active employees, which results in a11 implicit subsidy and an OPEB liability. 

Funding Policy. The contxibution requirements of plan members are established and may be amended by 
the County. The County currently finances the retiree beuefit plan on a pay-as-you-go basis. 

Aiulual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The County's annual OPED cost is calculated based on 
the annual required contcibution of the County (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance 
with GASB Stalemeill No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, 
is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period 
not to exceed 30 years. 

The table shows the componeilts of the County's annual OPEB cost for June 30, 2010, the amount 
actually contributed to the plan and the changes in the County's net OPEB obligation: 

Annual required contribution $77,437 
Interest on net OPEB obligation 0 
Adjustment to aunual required contribution 0 

Annual OPEB cost (expense) 77,437 
Contributions made 9,788 

Increase in net OPED obligation 67,649 
Net OPEB obligalion - beginuing of year 0 

Net OPEB obligation - end of the year $67,649 
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Note 10: Other Postem~lovment Benefits (OPEB (Continued) 

For calculatiol1 of the net OPEB obligation, the actuary has set the transition day as July 1, 2009. The 
end of year net OPEB obligation was calculated by the actuary as the cumulative difference between the 
actuarially detei~nined funding require~neilts and the plan's actual contributions for the year ended June 
30, 2010. 

For the fiscal year 2010, the County contributed $9,788 to the medical plan. Plan members receiving 
benefits contributed $41,530, or 81% of the premium costs. 

The County's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net 
OPEB obligation as of June 30, 2010 are summarized as follows: 

Percentage of Net 
Fiscal Year Annual Amlual OPEB OPEB 

Ended OPEB Cost Cost Contributed Obligation 
June 30,2010 $77,437 1.26% $67,649 

Funded Status and Fundina Proaress. As of July 1, 2009, the most recent actuarial valuation date for the 
period July 1, 2009 through June 30, 2010, the actuarial accrued liability was $622,138, with no 
actuarial value of assets, resulting in an unfunded actuarial liability (UAAL) of $622,138. The covered 
payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $3,663,108, and the ratio of the 
UAAL to the covered payroll was 16.98%. As of June 30,2010, there were no trust fund assets. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the 
value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the 
Mure. Exaniples include assunlption about future enlployinent, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. 
Actuarially determined amounts are subject to contiiiual revision as actual results are cornpared with past 
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented 
as Required Supplementary Information in the section following the Notes to Financial Statements, will 
present nlultiyear treild information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or 
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. 

Projections of benefits {or financial reporting purposes are based on the plan as ullderstood by the 
enlployer and the plan members and include the tyyes of benefits provided at the time of each valuation 
and the historical pattern of sharing benefit costs between employer and plan menlbers to that point. The 
actuarial methods and assunlptious used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of 
short term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the 
long term perspective of the calculations. 

As of July 1, 2009 actuarial date, the Frozen Entry Age Actuarial Cost method was used. The actuarial 
assumptions included a 2.5% discount rate based on the County's funding policy. The projected annual 
medical treild rate is 6%. 

Mortality rates are from the 94 Group Annuity Mortality Table, applied on a gender specific basis. 
Annual retirement and termination probabilities were developed from the retirement probabilities from 
the IPERS Actuarial Valuation Report as of June 30, 2007 and applying the termination factors used in 
IPERS Actuarial Report as of June 30, 2007. 

Projected claim costs of the medical plan are $480 per month for retirees less than 65. The UAAL is 
being ainortized on a level dollar basis over 30 years. 
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Note 11: Landfill of North Iowa 

Franklin County, in conjunction with seventeen other nlunicipalities, has created the Landfill of North 
Iowa. The Landfill was established for the primary purpose of providing for the collectio~l and disposal 
of solid waste produced or generated by each participant. On dissolution of the co~poration, the net 
assets of the Landfill will be prorated among the nrunicipalities. The Landfill is governed by a board 
co~nposed of an appointed representative of the governing body of each participating governnlental 
jurisdiction. 

The Landfill is not accumulati~rg sufficient financial resources and the participating governirlents are 
obligated for a proportionate share of the debt, therefore, Franklin County has an o~rgoi~lg financial 
responsibility. The Con~ity is also obligated to remit a share of the operating administration costs. 
During the year ended June 30,2010, Fra~rklin County paid $5,954 for its share of the costs. Completed 
financial statenlelrts for the Landfill can be obtained from the Landfill of North Iowa. 



FRANKLIN COUNTY 
Hampton, Iowa 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS, 
DISBURSEMENTS AND CHANGES IN BALANCES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS) - ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Year Ended June 30,201 0 

Less 
Funds Not 

Required to Budgeted Amou~lts Final to Net 
Actual Be Budgeted Net Original Fiual Variance 

RECEIPTS: 
Property & Other Cou~lty Tax $5,788,845 $0 $5,788,845 $5,707,686 $5,707,686 $81,159 
Interest & Peilalty 011 Property Tax 41,470 0 41,470 10,150 10,150 31,320 
Intergovernme~ltal 5,330,432 254,899 5,075,533 5,344,264 5,354,264 (278,731) 
Licenses & Permits 20,006 0 20,006 15,800 15,800 4,206 
Charges for Services 663,997 0 663,997 589,065 608,465 55,532 
Use of Money &Property 423,691 0 423,691 174,155 523,020 (99,329) 
Miscellaneous 385,602 151,217 234,385 115,775 115,775 118,610 

Total Receipts 12,654,043 406,116 12,247,927 11,956,895 12,335,160 (87,233) 

DISBURSEMENTS: 
Public Safety & Legal Services 1,334,408 0 1,334,408 1,521,704 1,534,638 200,230 
Physical Health & Social Services 1,723,534 0 1,723,534 1,778,833 1,824,338 100,804 
Mental Health 1,027,297 0 1,027,297 1,121,766 1,164,466 137,169 
Couilty Enviro~lment & Educalion 594,915 0 594,915 707,514 755,386 160,471 
Roads & Transportation 4,565,968 0 4,565,968 4,292,000 4,870,500 304,532 
Governmental Services to Residents 414,651 0 414,651 431,846 459,697 45,046 
Administrative Services 1,703,747 0 1,703,747 1,995,916 2,030,799 327,052 
Non - program 933,146 933,146 0 0 0 0 
Debt Service 1,748,734 0 1,748,734 408,805 1,304,102 (444,632) 
Capital Projects 530,751 0 530,751 861,498 1,861,498 1,330,747 

Total Disbursements 14,577,151 933,146 13,644,005 13,119,882 15,805,424 2,161,419 

Excess (Deficiency) of Receipts Over 
(Under) Disburse~llents (1,923,108) (527,030) (1,396,078) (1,162,987) (3,470,264) 2,074,186 

Other Financing Sources, Net 19,141,848 331,848 18,810,000 13,000 18,354,479 455,521 

Excess (Deficiency) of Receipts & 
Other Financing Sources Over 
(Under) Disburseme~lts 17,218,740 (195,182) 17,413,922 (1,149,987) 14,884,215 2,529,707 

Balance Beginning of Year 5,689,194 367,922 5,321,272 3,943,245 2,992,190 1,378,027 

Bala~lce End of Year $22,907,934 $172,740 $22,735,194 $2,793,258 $18,827,460 $3,907,734 

See Accompanyiilg Independent Auditors' Report 



FRANKLIN COUNTY 
Hampton, Iowa 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - BUDGET TO GAAP RECONCILIATION 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Year Ended June 30.2010 

Governnlental Funds 
Cash Accrual Modified 
Basis Adjustineilts Accrual Basis 

Revenues $12,654,043 $(115,764) $12,538,279 
Expenditures 14,577,151 337,270 14,914,421 
Net (1,923,108) (453,034) (2,376,142) 
Other Financing Sources - Net 19,141,848 155,100 19,296,948 
Beginning Fund Balances 5,689,194 1,055,689 6,744,883 
Decrease in Reserve For: 

Ii~veiltories ' 0 (25,500) (25,500) 

Ending Fwd Balances $22,907,934 $732,255 $23,640,189 

See Accompanying Independellt Auditors' Report 



Franltlin County 

Notes to Required Supplementary I~forination - Budgetary Reporting 

June 30. 2010 

The budgetary coinparisoil is presented as Required Supplementary Information in accordance with 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 41 for governments with significant 
budgetary perspective differences resulting from not being able to present budgetary comparisons 
for the General Fund and each major Special Revenue Fund. 

In accordance with the Code of Iowa, the County Board of Supelvisors ailnually adopts a budget on 
the cash basis following required public notice and hearing for all funds, except blended conlponent 
units and Agency Funds, and appropriates the amount deemed necessary for each of the different 
County offices and departments. The budget may be amended during the year utilizing similar 
statutorily prescribed procedures. Encumbrances are not recognized on the cash basis budget and 
appropriations lapse at year eud. 

Forinal and legal budgetary control is based upon 10 major classes of expenditures known as 
functions, not by fund. These 10 functions are: public safety and legal services, physical health and 
social services, mental health, county environment and education, roads and transportation, 
governnlental services to residents, administration, non-program, debt service and capital projects, 
Function disbursements required to be budgeted include disburse~nents for the General Fund, 
Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Fund and the Capital Projects Fund. Although the budget 
document presents function disbursements by fund, the legal level of control is at the aggregated 
function level, not by fund. Legal budgetary control is also based upon the appropriation to each 
office or department. During the year, two budget amendments increased budgeted disbursen~eilts 
by $2,685,542. The budget amendments are reflected in the final budgeted amounts. 

In addition, annual budgets are similarly adopted in accordance with the Code of Iowa by the 
appropriate governing body as indicated: for the County Extension Office by the County 
Agricultural Extension Council, for the County Assessor by the County Conference Board, for the 
E911 System by the Joint E911 Service Board. 

During the year ended June 30, 2010, disbursements exceeded the amounts budgeted in the debt 
service function. 



Franklin County 

Required Suppleinentary Infonllation 

Schedule of Funding Progress for the Retiree Health Plan (In Thousands) 

Actuarial UAAL as a 
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage of 

Actuarial Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered Covered 
Valuation Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll 

Date (a p (ah) C ( b - 4 4 ~ )  

July 1, 2009 $0 $622 $622 0% $3,663 16.9% 

See Note 10 in the accoillpanying Notes to Financial Statements for the plan description, funding 
policy, annual OPEB costs and Net OPEB Obligation, and the funded status and funding progress. 



FRANKLIN COUNTY 
Hampton, Iowa 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

June 30,2010 

County Northern Dows Travel 
Recorder's Resource Rural Pipe Center 

Records Enhancement County Urban Urban 
Landfill Management & Protection Betterment Renewal Renewal 

ASSETS 

Cash & Pooled Investments $186,284 $10,155 $81,488 $111,296 $36,688 $20,278 
Receivables: 

Accounts 0 224 0 0 0 0 
Accrued Interest 0 1 0 0 0 0 
Drainage Assessments 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Due From Other Govern~nents 0 0 0 13,011 0 0 

TOTALASSETS $186,284 $10,380 $81,488 $124,307 $36,688 $20,278 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 
Accounts Payable 
Interest Payable 
Deferred Rcvenue 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total Liabilities 6,897 0 0 0 0 0 

Fund Balances: 
Unreserved 179,387 10,380 81,488 124,307 36,688 20,278 

Total Fund Equily 179,387 10,380 81,488 124,307 36,688 20,278 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 
FUND BALANCES $186,284 $10,380 $81,488 $124,307 $36,688 $20,278 

See Accoinpanying Iildepeildent Auditors' Report 



Schedule 1 

Memorial 
Hall Conservation Conservation 

Sheriffs Tobacco1 Atto~ney Wolf Land Drill Capital 
Drainage Forfeiture Alcohol DARE Forfeiture Bequest Acquisition Replacement Projects Total 



PRANIUIN COUNTY 
Hampton, Iowa 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
Year Ended hme 30,2010 

County Higllway Northern Dows Travel 
Recorder's Resource Rural 65 Pipe Ce~iter 

Records Enhancement County Urban Urban Urban 
Landfill Management &Protection Betterment Renewal Renewal Renewal 

Revenues: 
Property and Other County Tax $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,364 $55,622 $0 
Local Option Sales Tax 0 0 0 153,455 0 0 0 
Intergovemniental 26,735 0 14,839 0 0 0 0 
Charges for Services 0 2,378 0 0 0 0 0 
lJse of Money and Property 1,184 13 178 0 0 0 0 
Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total Revenues 27,919 2,391 15,017 153,455 6,364 55,622 0 

Expenditures: 
Operating: 

Public Safety and Legal Services 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Physical Health and Social Services 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
County Environliient and Education 41,608 0 0 148,127 0 0 0 
Government Services to Residents 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Administration 0 0 0 1,500 0 0 0 
Non-program 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Debt Service 0 0 0 0 6,369 54,990 12,639 
Capital Projects 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total Expenditurcs 41,608 0 0 149,627 6,369 54,990 12,639 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) 
Expcnditmes (13,689) 2,391 15,017 3,828 (5) 632 (12,639) 

Other Financing Sources: 
Operating Transfers In 0 0 0 0 0 0 10,000 
Operating Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
General Obligation Bonds Issued 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Drainage Warrant Proceeds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 0 0 10,000 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other 
Financing Sources Over (Undcr) Expenditures 
and Other Financing Uses (13,689) 2,391 15,017 3,828 (5) 632 (2,639) 

Fund Balances Beginning of Year 193,076 7,989 66,451 120,479 5 36,056 22,917 

Fund Balances End of Year $179,387 $10,380 $81,468 $124,307 $0 $36,688 $20,278 

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report 
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FRANKLIN COUNTY 
Hampton, Iowa 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF FIDUCIARY 
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

AGENCY FUNDS 
June 30, 2010 

Agricultural 

- 
ASSETS 

County Extension County 
Offices Education Assessor Schools 

Cash and Pooled Investments: 
County Treasurer $0 $3,494 $151,292 $101,587 
Other County Officials 10,036 0 0 0 

Receivables: 
Properly Tax: 

Delinquent 0 4 5 25 1 
Succeeding Year 0 149,965 165,374 8,218,629 

Accounts 701 0 I I 0 
Accrued Interest 0 0 0 0 
Assessments 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL ASSETS $10,737 $153,463 $316,682 $8,320,467 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts Payable $0 $0 $446 $0 
Duc to Other Governments 170 153,463 308,778 8,320,467 
Trusts Payable 10,567 0 0 0 
Cornpe~~satcd Absences 0 0 7,458 0 

TOTAL LIABlLlTlES $10,737 $153,463 $3 16,682 $8,320,467 

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report 
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FRANIUIN COUNTY 
Hampton, Iowa 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY 
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - AGENCY FUNDS 

Year Ended June 30,2010 

Agricultural 
County Extension County 
Offices Education Assessor Schools 

Assets and Liabilities 

Balances Beginning of Year $3,553 $149,744 $294,879 $8,140,466 

Additions: 
Property and Other County Tax 0 154,389 170,003 8,460,188 
E911 Surcharge 0 0 0 0 
State Tax Credits 0 6,607 6,917 365,174 
Drivers License Fees 0 0 0 0 
Office Fees and Collections 294,606 0 0 0 
Auto Licenses, Use Tax and Postage 0 0 0 0 
Assessments 0 0 0 0 
Trusts 1,604,142 0 0 0 
Miscellaneous 1,193 4 1 2,281 2,588 

Total Additions 1,899,941 161,037 179,201 8,827,950 

Deductions: 
Agency Rcinittances: 

To Other Funds 173,491 0 0 0 
To Other Govcrnincnts 122,565 157,318 157,398 8,647,949 
Trusts Paid Out 1,596,701 0 0 0 

Total Deductions 1,892,757 157,318 157,398 8,647,949 

Balances End of Year $10,737 $153,463 $316,682 $8,320,467 

See Accollll~allying Independent Auditors' Report 
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FRANKLIN COUNTY 
Hampton, Iowa 

SCHEDULE OF REVENU3S BY SOURCE AND 
EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION 
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

For the Last Eight Years 

Revenues: 
Property & Other County Tax 
Interest & Penalty On Property Tax 
Intergovernmental 
Liceiises & Permits 
Charges For Service 
Use of Money & Property 
Miscellaneous 

Total 

Modified Accrual Basis 
2010 2009 2008 2007 

Exnenditures: 
Operating: 

Public Safety & Legal Services $1,324,343 $1,347,201 $1,618,405 $1,650,947 
Physical Heall11 & Social Services 1,734,045 1,719,999 1,666,620 1,461,638 
Mental Health 1,026,945 1,076,638 1,191,752 1,057,193 
County Environment 

& Education Services 591,970 928,555 617,456 612,619 
Roads & Transportation 4,879,566 4,269,560 3,913,208 3,713,721 
Governme~ztal Services To Residents 416,889 343,619 303,601 325,827 
Ad~ninistrative Services 1,681,685 1,413,255 1,426,991 1,612,365 
Nan-Proyam 938,659 391,507 116,516 391,050 

Debt Services 1,748,734 433,668 411,419 391,603 
Capital Projects 571,585 487,344 208,306 180,253 

Total $14,914,421 $12,411,346 $11,474,274 $11,397,216 

See Accoinpamying Independent Auditors' Report 
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Gardiner Thomsen 
Certified Public Accountants 

Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial 
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of 
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with 
Goverrzmerzt Auditing Standards 

To the Officials of Franklin County: 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and 
the aggregate remaining fund information of Franklin County, Iowa, as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2010, which collectively comprise the County's basic financial statements listed in the table of contents, and 
have issued our report thereon dated January 24, 2010. We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. 
generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reoorting 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Franklin County's intemal control over financial 
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Franklin 
County's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of Franklin County's internal control over financial reporting. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described m the 
preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over fmancial 
reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore, there can be no 
assurance all deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses have been identified. However, as 
described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control 
over financial reporting we consider to be material weaknesses and other deficiencies we consider to be 
significant deficiencies. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility a material misstatement of the County's financial 
statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies in 
internal control described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings as items A and B to be material 
weaknesses. 

A significant deficiency is a deficiency or combination of deficiencies in internal control which is less severe 
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We 
consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings as items C and D to be 
significant deficiencies. 

1209 South Main Street, PO Box 216 'Charles City, IA 50616-0216 'Phone: (641) 228-7096 'Fax: (641) 228-7103 'www.gardinercpa.com 



Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Franklin County's financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations and 
contracts, non-compliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial 
statement amounts. However, providing an opiilion on co~upliance with those provisions was not an objective 
of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no 
instances of non-compliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Governlnellt Auditing 
Standards. However, we noted certain immaterial instances of non-compliance or other matters which are 
described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings. 

Comments involving statutory and other legal matters about the County's operations for the year ended June 
30, 2010 are based exclusively on lcnowledge obtained from procedures performed during our audit of the 
financial statements of the County. Since our audit was based on tests and samples, not all transactions that 
might have had an impact on the comnlents were necessarily audited. The comments involving statutory and 
other legal matters are not intended to constitute legal interpretations of those statutes. 

Franklin County's responses to findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying Schedule of 
Findings. While we have expressed our conclusions on the County's responses, we did not audit Franklin 
Couilty's responses and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them. 

This report, a public record by law, is intended solely for the information and use of the officials, employees 
and citizens of Franklin County and other parties to whom Franklin County may report, and is not intended to 
be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

We would like to acknowledge the many courtesies and assistance extended to us by personnel of Franklin 
County during the course of our audit. Should you have any questions concerning any of the above matters, 
we shall be pleased to discuss them with you at your convenience. 

January 24,2010 



FRANKLIN COUNTY 
Hampton,  Iowa  

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS 
Y e a r  Ended J u n e  30,2010 

Pindiugs Related to the Financial Statements: 

INTERNAL CONTROL DEFICIENCIES 

A Seereeation of Duties - During our review of internal control, the existing procedures are evaluated 
in order to determine iucoinpatible duties, from a control sta~ldpoint, are not performed by the same 
employee. This segregation of duties helps prevent losses from employee error or dishonesty and, 
therefore, maximizes the accuracy of the County's financial statements. 

Reconrnrendation~- We realize that with a limited number of office employees, segregation of duties 
is difficult. However, the County Officials should review the operating procedures of each office to 
obtain the maximum internal control possible under the circumstances. 

Response - We have reviewed procedures and plan to make the necessary changes to inlprove 
internal control. Specifically, the custody, record-keeping and reco~lciling fiu~ctions currently 
performed by each office will be separated and spread among the Official, Deputy and Clerk. 

Conclusion - Response accepted. 

B Financial Reporting - During the audit, we identified material amounts of receivables and capital 
asset additions and disposals that were not recorded in the County's financial statements. 
Adjustments were subsequelltly made by the Coui~ty to properly includelexclude these amounts 
inlfroin the financial statements. 

Recomnrendation-- The County should irnpleinent procedures to ensure all receivables and capital 
asset activities are identified and included in the County's fillancia1 statements. 

Respo~zse - We will revise our current procedures to ensure proper amou~lts are recorded in the 
financial stateme~~ts in the future. 

Conclusion - Response accepted. 

C Preparation of Full Disclosore Financial Statements - Internal controls over financial reporting 
include the actual preparation and review of financial statements, including footnote disclosure, for 
external reporting, as required by generally accepted accounting principles. Franldin County does not 
have the internal resources to prepare the full-disclosure financial statemeuts required by GAAP for 
external reporting. While this circumstance is not uncommon for most governn~ental entities, it is the 
responsibility of managenleilt and those charged with governance, to prepare reliable financial data, 
or accept the risk associated with this condition because of cost or other coilsiderations. 

Reconrmendation - We recognize that with a limited number of office enlployees, gaining sufficient 
laowledge and expertise to properly select and apply accounting principles and preparing full 
disclosure financial statements for external reporting purposes is difficult. However, we recommend 
that County officials continue to review operating procedures and obtain the internal expertise needed 
to handle all the aspects of external financial reporting, rather than relyiug on external assistance. 

Rcspoitsc - We recognize our limitations, however, it is not fiscally responsible to add additional 
staff at this time. 

ConeIusion Response  acknowledged. 



FRANKLIN COUNTY 
Hampton,  Iowa  

SCHEDULE O F  FINDINGS (Continued) 

Findi~les Related to the Financial Statenlents (Continued): 

D Treasurer's Office - The Treasurer's Office has not reconciled the cash and investments to the 
general ledger during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. 

Recontnrertdatiorz - The Treasurer's Office should reconcile the general ledger fund balance to the 
cash and investment held by the Treasurer on a monthly basis. 

Response - We will begin reconciling the general ledger to the cash and investments iin~nediately. 

Conclusion - Response accepted 

INSTANCES O F  NON-COMPLIANCE: 
No matters were noted. 

Other Findings Related to Required Statutorv Reportine: 

1. Certified Budeet - Disbursen~ents during the year ended June 30, 2010 exceeded the amounts 
budgeted in the debt service function. 

Recom~tzendation - The budget should have been amended before disbursements were allowed to 
exceed the budget. 

Response W e  will a~nend the budget when required. 

Conclusiorz - Response accepted. 

2. Ouestio~~able Expenditures - No expenditures that may not meet the requirements of public 
purpose as defined by an Attorney General's opinion dated April 25, 1979 were noted. 

3. Travel Expenses - No expenditures of County money for travel expenses of spouses of County 
officials or employees were noted. 

4. Bnsiness Trar~sactio~l - Business transactions between the County and County officials or 
employees are detailed as follows: 

Name, Title & Business Transaction 

Michelle Giddings, Auditor 
I-Iusband owns Gidding Signs Signs $1,285 

Michelle Giddings, Auditor 
Bradi Moore, Daughter 
Jody Patton, Sister 

Election Runner 28 
Election Runner 34 



FRANKLIN COUNTY 
Hampton,  Iowa 

SCHEDULE O F  FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued) 

Other Findings Related to Required Statutorv Reporting (Continued): 

In accordance with Chapter 331.342 of the Code of Iowa, the lra~lsactioils with Giddings Signs do not 
appear to represent conflicts of interest since the contract was made upon a co~npetitive bid, in 
writing, publicly invited and opened, and were less than $1,500 during the fiscal year. 

In accordance with Chapter 331.342 of the Code of Iowa, the transactions with Michelle Giddings do 
not appear to represent conflicts of interest since total transactions were less than $1,500 during the 
fiscal year. 

Recomnrendotion - The County should refrain from conducting business with related parties. 

Response - We will refrain froin conducting business with related parties when possible, 

Conclusion - Response accepted. 

5. Bond Coverages - Surety bond coverage of County officials and employees is in accordailce with 
statutory provisions. The amount of coverage should be reviewed periodically to ensure that 
coverage is adequate for current operatio~ls. 

6 .  Board Minutes - No transactions were found that we believe should have been approved in the 
Board minutes but were not. However, the Board of Supervisors went into closed sessioil on 
September 25, 2009 and September 28, 2009 and the board millutes did not docuineilt that a roll call 
vote closed the session or final action taken in open session. The Board went into closed session on 
November 9, 2009 and the board minutes did not docunlent that the session was closed with a roll call 
vote, t l~e  specific exenlption or final action taken in open session. The Board went into closed session 
on November 23, 2009 and February 1, 2010 and the board minutes do not document that a roll call 
vote closed the session. The Board went into closed session on December 7,2009 and the ininutes do 
not document the specific exemption or the final action taken in open session. 

The County's publication of Board proceediiigs includes suinnlaries of resolutions passed rather than 
the full resolutions. Chapter 349.16 of the Code of Iowa requires publicalioi~ of the proceedings of 
the Board of Supervisors. Chapter 331.504 of the Code of Iowa states the minutes of the Board are lo 
include a coinplete text of the motions, resolutio~~s, amendments and ordinances adopted by the 
Board. An Atto~~ley General's Opinion dated January 27, 1982 slates it is not permissible to publish 
a summary of resolutions. 

Recommenrlatiort - The Board of Supervisors should ensure that all closed meetings comply with 
Chapter 21 of the Code of Iowa. Publications of ininutes should include the complete text of 
resolutions adopted by the Board. 

Resporrse - We will conlply. 

Conclusion - Response accepted. 



FRANKLIN COUNTY 
Hampton ,  I owa  

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS (Continued) 

Other Findings Related to Required Statutory Reuorting (Continued): 

7. Deuosits and Investments - No instances of non-compliance with the deposit and investnlent 
provisious of Chapter 12B and 12C of the Code of Iowa and the County's investinent policy were 
noted. However, it was noted that interest earned on proceeds from the General Obligation Roadway 
Construction Bonds and the General Obligation Urban Renewal County Road Improvement Bonds 
was not credited to the proper fund. 

It was also noted that the Treasurer's depository resolution limits were exceeded during the fiscal 
year. 

Recon~nzeitdation - Chapter 12C9.2 of the Code of Iowa states that interest earned on proceeds of 
notes, bonds, refunding bonds and other evidence of indebtedness be used to pay the principal or 
interest as it comes due on the indebtedness or be credited to the Capital Projects Fund for which the 
indebtedness was issued. The interest earned on these proceeds should be credited to the 
appropriate fund in accordance with the Code of Iowa. 

A new depository resolution with linlits sufficient to the needs of the Treasurer and including all 
depositories used by the Treasurer should be adopted by the Board. 

Response - We will make this correction immediately 

Conclusion - Response accepted. 

8.  Resource E n h a n c e ~ n e ~ ~ t  and Protection Certification - The County properly dedicated property 
tax revenue to conservation purposes as required by Chapter 455A.l9(l)(b) of the Code of Iowa in 
order to receive the additional REAP funds allocated in accordance with subsections (b)(2) and 
(bI(3). 

9.  count^ Extension Office - The County Extension Office is operated under the authority of Chapter 
176A of the Code of Iowa and serves as an agency of the State of Iowa. This fund is ad~ninistered 
by an Extension Council separate and distinct from County operations and, consequently, is not 
included in ~xhib i t s  A or B. 

Disbursements during the year ended June 30, 2010 for the County Extension Office did not exceed 
the amount budgeted. 

10. Capital Lease Purchase Agreement - During the year ended June 30, 2010, the County entered 
into a capital lease purchase agreement for the purchase of a motor grader for the Secondary Roads 
Department. However, a public hearing was not held prior to the authorization of this lease purchase 
agreement as required by Chapters 33 1.478 and 331.479 of the Code of Iowa. 

Recommerzdation - The County should consult legal counsel for the disposition of this matter. In 
the future, the County should hold a public hearing prior to the authorization of a lease purchase 
agreement in accordance with Chapters 33 1.478 and 33 1.479 ofthe Code of Iowa. 

Response - We will consult legal counsel and this will be complied with in the future. 

Conclusion - Response accepted. 



News Release 

Gardiner Thornsen, P.C. today released an audit report on Franklin County, Iowa. 

The County had local tax revenue of $19,052,569 for the year ended June 30, 2010 which included $786,972 
in tax credits from the State. The County then forwarded $13,014,076 of the local tax revenue to the 
townships, school districts, cities, and other taxing bodies in the County. 

The County retained $5,322,154 of the local tax revenue to finance County operations, a 7.6% increase from 
the prior year. Other reveilues included charges for service of $2,718,860, operating grants, contributions and 
restricted interest of $3,702,794, capital grants, contributions and restricted interest of $375,352, local option 
sales tax of $460,365, unrestricted iilvestmeilt earnings of $1 17,053 and other general revenues of $1 14,463. 

Expenses for the County operations totaled $13,475,395, a 13% increase from the prior year. Expenses 
included $5,413,469 for Roads and Transportation, $1,741,802 for Physical Health and Social Services, and 
$1,587,489 for Administration. 

A copy of the audit report is available for review in the Office of the Auditor of State and the County 
Auditor's office, in the Office of Auditor of State and 011 the Auditor of State's web site at 
l~ttp://auditor.iowa.gov/reports/reports.html. 


